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CHURCH AND PRESUBVTERY OF STAMEFORD.
Tho wgiter, having become greatly interested in the
study of the origin and progress of Presbyteridnism
on the Niagita Pesiinsula and adjacent Canadian
territary, Prdposas to preparé a series of papers on
the subjéctifor  pabligation in tho PRESBVTERIAN,
*And, as a child’s cducation s begun tg{! teaching.bun
- tho-wiplmbet 30-ho dedms it propeyo (gqiﬂmjxr_ﬁ,

paper to the first Preshyterian congregafion ever gath-
cred within the territory described, (if not the first in
all Unianw), and toits ccclesiastical connections.

The carly scttlers in this portion of the country,
whether coming directly from the British isles, ov,
after the “Amernican Revolution,” leaving the new
“Republic” because of their continuous loyalty to the
crown, were mostly of Presbyterian stock, and brought
with them a sincere and abiding love for the Church
of their ancestors.  We find, therefore, that, long be-
fore minsters could be had to preach the word, con-
gregations  were  gathered, and comfortable log
churches marked the centres of Presbyterian influence.
If the hardy pioncers could not enjoy all “the ordi-
nances,” they could set up tabernacles in the wilder-
ness, and come together, on cach returning Sabbath
for prdyer and praise.  The congregation at Stamford,
thus onygonating, dates the first gathering together for
religous worship back to 1783, from about which time,
for many years, it was necessarily a kind of Indepen-
dent Presbyterian Socicty. The first Presbyterian
preaching of which record has been preserved was in
1794. In October of that year, the Rev. John Dunn,
a hicenuate of the Presbytery of Glasgow, came over
from Albany, N.Y., where he had been officiating, for
some tme tu a Presbyterian congregation.  He labor-
ed for two years in Stamford and Niagara, and then
abrupuy 1eft the menustry for more congenial pursuats,
He engaged in trade at Niagara, and, in 1803, while
in purswt of traflic, the vessel on which he sailed—the
“Speedy,” carrymng ten guns—wae lost on Lake
oOntano, with all on board. The original church
buwdding, erected betore the year 1800, was put up by
gencial contribution, but, the Presbyterians largely
predumunating, it was to beespedially a “ Presbyterian
mecting house.” There is no evidence of the congre.
gauon bewng supplied with preaching, after Mr. Dunn
lefi, untdd 18ui, when Rev. D. W, Eastman, a licenti-
ate of the Presbytery of Morristown, New Jersey,
came with hus famuly, and for a year or more, resided
at Stamfurd. He began at once to preach for the
Staunford people un stated Sabbaths, and continued to
do sv until the second American war, sometime in
1814, comnpelled a discontinuance. In 1804, Rev. Jno.
Burns, a Scotch Secessipn minister, arrived, and also
rosided, fur a time, at Stamford. He preached at
Stumfurd, at Niagara, and at the “German meeting
house,” near Thorold, alternating at Stamford with
M:. Easunan untd the war, and, even then, the clash
of arins dud not drive cither of these faithful ministers
eaurcly avay.  As upportunity afforded, they minis-
tered to the suffeting and the afflicted, and preached
the Guapel whenever they could be heard. Dunng
purtins of the war, espeaally after the battle (f
Lundy’s Lane, the siege of Fort Eric, and the battle
of Chippewa, the church building was occupied as a
sort of barracks or huspital, and regular preaching
services were necessarily intermitted.  Neither M,
Lastman nor Mr. Burns preached regularly at Stam.
ford afier the war, and it is nut known how the church
was supphied fur several years.

In Muay, 1822, the Associate Synod, meeting in the
State of New York, appointed Messrs. Beveridge,
Hanna, and Aleaander Bullions to itinerate in Canada
three inuaths cach or thereabout, the expenses incus-
red by said mission to be defrayed by the Synod. The
occaswn of this action was a letter received by Dr.,
bualiwns, fivi, o Mt Om, living in Thorold township,
nut far fiom Stunfurd, requesting the Doctor “or
sunie vilier of the brethren, to take Upper Canada on
their way to the Synod of Pittsburg,” and suggesting
that “he wished the services of some broiher to preach
and administer the ordinance’of baptism in his family.”
The letter created an impression of greater destitution
than really existed, and, wher, a few weeks after their

they ‘were surprised to find a small congrepation,
worshipping.in a comfortable churclt building and en.
Joying the services of a “hired preacher” named
Wright, who had been withthem several years, After
an interview witha “ Mr, McMeckin” and Mr. Opr, it
was arranged that Mr. Hanna remain and supply the
pulpit the next Sabbath, and that Mr. Beveridge should
push on to a Scotch scttlement at Dumfrics,

Dr. Bullions came aficrwards to Canada, angd, in the
latter part of 1822, 0r carly in 1823, the Stamford con-
gregation was formally connected by him with the “As.
sociate Synod of North Ameri¢a,”and placed under the

. care of the Associate Presbytery of Albary., In 1823,

. Rev. David Goodwillie (father of Rev. D. H. Good-

=willic, a subsequent pastor), preached for a time in
Stamfofd, by-appointmend- of Synod. -At that time,
the Governor-General of Canada resided at “the ent-
tage,” about a mile north of the village, and he and
his family attended upon Mr. Goodwillie's ministry.
\Whether this attendance was a matter of convenience
or principle, 1s not known; but it is certain that the
representative of the crown heard the Gospel faith-
fully preached, In 1825, Rev. John Russcll (after-
wards Dr. Russcll), was seat by Presbytery as an o
daincd missionary to supply at Stamford, and in Nov-
cmber of that year, he was regularly inducted as the
first scttled pastor of the congregation. Dr. Russell
ministered 2lso to a church at Port Robinson, which
had been organized by Dr. Bullions and was associat-
ed with Stamford, holding the pastorate of the two
congregations acceptably untit he was stricken down
by death on the 3rd day of May, 1854, in the 58th
year of his age and the 28th of his ministry. He pos-
sessed intellectual alitics of a lugh order, preaching
with a rare unction, and cspecially excelling 1 the
gift of prayer. He was known and beloved through
all the surrounding country. He was for many years
the only minister of the Associate Church in Canada,
and was chiefly instrumental, in 1836, in the forma-
tion of the Associate Presbytery of Stamford, as an
offshoot from the Presbytery of Albany.

Rev. D. H. Goodwillie, a icentiate of the Associate
Presbytery of Shenango, was ordamned and installed
as Dr. Russcll’s successor, on the 27th of September,
1855. He was a native of New Bedford, in the State
of Pennsylvania (where his father was pastor of
Liberty congregation fifty years), a graduate of Jeffer-
son College, Pennsylvamia, and of the Associate
Scminary at Cannonsburg.  He was much beloved by
his people, and respected by the comsmunity at large.
He resigned in May, 1861,

In 1862, the congregations of Stamford and Port
Robunson, which had been separate since the death of
Dr. Russell, were again united, and in January, 1863,
Rev. James Magll was inducted pastor of both. He
was a native of Scotland, bat, by cducation and cii-
zenshup, an American,  His munustry covered a peniod
of nearly cleven ycars, closing by his resignation,
September gth, 1873. At this date the Stamford con-
gregation was much divided and depleted 1n numbers;
and the congregauon at Port Robinson, becoming dis-
couraged, withdrew from the U. P. Presbytery of
Stamford, and jomned the Presbytery of Iamilton, »f
the Canada Presbytenian Church, carrying with them
the church property, and permanently sevenng the
umon between the two congregations.

The present pastor at Stamford, the Rev. Robent
Acheson, was nstalled on the 23th day of November,
1874. Heis a nauve of County Armagh, Ireland;
studied in the University oi Glasgow; came to the
United States in 1856; was ordaned and installed
pastor of the Associatc Presbyterian Church at
Galena, Illinois, in 1857, and of the United Presby-
terian Church at Galt, Ontanio, mn 1858, The latter
position he held for fiftcen years, and then spent over
a year in Ireland for the health of his family, before
resuming pastoral labor, Since his induction at
Stamford, the congregation has become united, and it
has increased from a membership of fifty-five to about
cighty. 1t 1s nowin a prosperous and influential con-
dition, with a good attendance upon services.

The first church edifice, subsiantially and honestly
buil, had, 1n ns day, few cqualsin this gegion, either
fur beauty of architecture or location. It ctood unui
1871, as a monument of the past and as a memonal
of .God's protecting care over his people in a wilder-
ness country, and through the penls of war, In that
year it was removed to make way for the present build-
ing, which is.a model of neatness and comfort.

Three men are now in the active work of the minis-

appuintment, Mcssrs. Beveridge and Hanna arrived,

try who were, cither in wholc or in part, brought up

in this congregation, viz: Rev. J. L-Robinson;-Rev.
David Nivin, and Rev. J. "M, Goodwillie, all nqw
pastors of churches in connection with the Presbyteér-
fan Church in Canada. Being the oldest in this pait,
the Stamford congregatibn is, in no sense an innova-
tion or an intruder among the Presbyterfan Churches
in Canada, although the Church to which it belonks
is under another form of civil government, “across'the
lines”  And such has beon its alinost constant pros-
perity that its members, looking ‘back on-jts past his.
tory, may well exclaim: “The Lord liath donme great
things for us, whercof we arc glad.”
PROGRRSS OF THE MISSIONARIES.

Mr. Beveridge graphically describes his journty
from Stamford, through Ancaster and Dundas, to
Dumfries, where he found a scttlement of about
twelve families, who had been there five years without
having heard a Christian sermon; but they had formn-
cd themselves intoa socicty for prayer and conference,
which mct regularly on the Sabbath, and was well at-
tended. DBefore he left, having given their assent to
the standards of the Associate Church, they were
received into communion, and about twenty of their
children were baptised.  “This was the beginning of
the large and flourishing congregation at Galt” Dr, ~
Haunna having arrived from Stamford, he and Mr.
Beveridge returned as far as Duadas, and then took
the dircet road towards Toronto, to a certain point
wkere they “turned to the north along what was called
a concession line,” and at flength reached the resi-
dence of a Mr. Laidlaw, sixteen miles from the main
rcad, in Esquesing.  In that neighborhood they found
another Scotch scttlement,with 2 small society,and “a
Burgher minister engaged in dispensing the sacrament
of the Supper.” This man was “no better than he
should be,” but quite.to the contrary, *like too many
who were itinerating through the country at that time,
proved to be a worthless character,” spending the
moncy reccived for his services in a drunken spree
“at the first public house on the road.” The experi-
ence of the people with this “ Burgher minister,” and
their Christian conference with “two missionaries
from the States,” led, soon after, to the organization of
an Associate Presbyterian Church, which has develop-
cd into the present prosperous church at Milton,

THE PRESBYTERY.

Six congregations are now under the care of the
U. P. Presbytery of Stamford, viz.: Stamford, Galt,
Milion, Telfer, Walton, and Chesley,

‘The first minister regularly settled at Galt was Rev.
James Strang, from the Secession Church of Scotland,
who closed a most successful pastorate of twenty four
years, by death, in 1857. Rev. Robert Acheson, now
of Stamiord, followed, with yfilteen years of equally
successful labor; during which time, the congregation
crected a new stone church and manse, at a coet of
about $12,000, which had all been paid when he re-
signed in 1873. Rev. William H. Andrew is the
present pastor, and the congregation was never ia a
more prosperous condition.

‘The congregation at Milton {formerly ealled Esques-
ing}, in the county of Halton, originating as before
stated, came into its present ecclesiastical relations
about the same time as Galt. The present pastor,
Rev. John Gillespie, has been settled there for over
tweaty-five years, and during his ministry, the con
gregation, which has never been large, but is substan-
tial, have crected a beautiful brick church and manse.
The latter is once of the finest houses in the county;
and has about fifty acres attached as & glebe~—all frec
of debt. Pastor and people are much attached, and
there is no more united or prosperous congregation in
that region.

The congregation of Telfer, formerly called London,
is smali, and has suffered much for the want of a set-
tled pastor. They crected a handsome frame church
a few years since, and have also a manse and some
land.

The congregation of Walton, in the county of Huron,
is some fiftcen or twventy years old, and was the first
Presbyterian organization in that locality, They have
a good frame church and an excellent brick mansc,
with thirty acres of land as a glebe—all nearly free
from debt. As a congregation, it has also suffer-
ed much from change of pastors, and is ac present va-
cant.

The congregation of Chesley, county of Bruce, was
organized in 1873, and the pastor, Rev. Wm. Findley,
D.D., was scttled in 1876, A brick church and manse
have been erected and paid for, and the infant con-
gregation is prospering wonderfully.



